
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

RUSHMOOR BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 
 

 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 

at the Council Offices, Farnborough on 
Thursday, 31st July, 2025 at 7.00 pm 

 

 
 
To: 
 

Cllr Halleh Koohestani (Chairman) 
Cllr Nadia Martin (Vice-Chairman) 
Cllr M.J. Tennant (Vice-Chairman) 

 
Cllr Abe Allen 

Cllr Leola Card 
Cllr Thomas Day 
Cllr Steve Harden 

Cllr G.B. Lyon 
Cllr Bill O'Donovan 

Cllr S. Trussler 
Cllr Becky Williams 

 
 

Standing Deputy 
 
Cllr A. Adeola Cllr Mara Makunura 
Cllr C.W. Card Cllr T.W. Mitchell 
Cllr C.P. Grattan Cllr Sarah Spall 
 
 

 

Enquiries regarding this agenda should be referred to the Administrator, Adele 
Taylor, Democratic Services, Tel. (01252) 398831, Email. 

adele.taylor@rushmoor.gov.uk. 
 

Public Document Pack



A G E N D A 
 

1. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING – (Pages 1 - 6) 
 
To confirm the Minutes of the Meeting held on 12th June, 2025 (copy attached). 
 

2. HOUSING AND HOMELESSNESS PREVENTION STRATEGY  2023-27 – (Pages 7 
- 14) 
 
To receive an update from Zoe Paine, Housing Strategy and Enabling Officer, on 
progress with the Housing and Homelessness Prevention Strategy 2023-27. 
Jermaine Pinto, Housing Options Manager will be in attendance to answer any 
questions relating to the Housing Options Service. 
 
The Portfolio Holder for Housing and Planning, Cllr Keith Dibble will also be in 
attendance. 
 

3. WORK PLAN – (Pages 15 - 22) 
 
To consider the Work Plan for the 2025/26 Municipal Year (copy attached). 
 
 

MEETING REPRESENTATION 
 
Members of the public may ask to speak at the meeting on any of the items on the 
agenda by writing to the Committee Administrator at the Council Offices, 
Farnborough by 5.00 pm two working days prior to the meeting. 
 
Applications for items to be considered for the next meeting must be received in 
writing to the Committee Administrator fifteen working days prior to the meeting. 

 
 

----------- 
 
 



- 1 - 
 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 

 
Meeting held on Thursday, 12th June, 2025 at the Council Offices, Farnborough at 
7.00 pm. 
 
Voting Members 

Cllr Halleh Koohestani (Chairman) 
Cllr Nadia Martin (Vice-Chairman) 
Cllr M.J. Tennant (Vice-Chairman) 

 
Cllr Abe Allen 

Cllr Leola Card 
Cllr Thomas Day 
Cllr Steve Harden 

Cllr G.B. Lyon 
Cllr Bill O'Donovan 
Cllr Becky Williams 

 
Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of Cllr S. Trussler. 
 
Cllr Mara Makunura attended the meeting as a Standing Deputy. 
 

1. APPOINTMENT OF VICE-CHAIRMAN 
 
RESOLVED: That Cllrs. Nadia Martin and M.J. Tennant be appointed as Vice-
Chairmen of the Committee for the 2025/26 Municipal Year. 
 

2. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING 
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 27th March, 2025 were agreed as a correct 
record. 
 

3. REGISTERED PROVIDERS TASK AND FINISH GROUP - ANNUAL REPORT 
2024/25 
 
The Committee welcomed Mrs Zoe Paine, Strategy and Enabling Manager, who was 
in attendance to provide the Annual Report on the work of the Registered Providers 
Task and Finish Group during the 2024/25 Municipal Year. Cllr Keith Dibble, Housing 
and Planning Portfolio Holder was also in attendance to answer Members questions. 
 
Mrs Paine, advised on the purpose, membership, terms of reference and process of 
the Group. It was noted that the Terms of Reference had been amended to fit with 
the new Council priorities and Registered Providers (RPs) that had not been invited 
to meet with the Group had been asked to complete a questionnaire online, only 
three had completed this. 
 

Page 1

AGENDA ITEM No. 1



- 2 - 
 

It was noted that the three invited RPs had been, Metropolitan Thames  Valley 
Housing Association (MTVHA), A2 Dominion and VIVID. Engaging with the largest 
provider of social housing in the area, VIVID, had been challenging, with them 
refusing to meet with the Group, but offering an all Member seminar instead. It was 
felt that the level of engagement achieved in a seminar would not be the same as 
achieved in a smaller meeting with appropriate representatives from the housing 
association. It was noted that Managing Director, Ian Harrison, would be meeting 
with VIVID’s Chief Executive, Mark Perry, later in June, and part of the agenda for 
the meeting would be to discuss engagement with the RP Group. In the cases on A2 
Dominion and MTVHA, less senior members of staff had been sent to the meeting 
than in previous years, resulting in more operational conversations rather than the 
desired strategic discussions. 
 
During the discussion, a number of comments/suggestions were made, these 
included: 
 

 establish a timetable that allowed more RPs to be seen more frequently – see 
those performing well, not just those that are not performing 

 explore the use of communications channels to raise awareness of issues 
raised/poor performance – “name and shame” 

 explore the option of working with the local MP to improve engagement 

 RPs should be responding to all councillors equally 

 address the work flow/process of the Task and Finish Group before calling out 
RPs on performance – important to retain good relationships 

 establish what we want the RPs to be doing in the Borough, by being more 
strategic and time efficient 

 establish a scoring system to rate RPs  

 work with the Task and Finish Group to revise the questionnaire to ensure 
relevance – currently very long and could be reason why response rates were 
low 

 work with neighbours linked through Local Government Reorganisation to 
strengthen voices and raise issues wider 

 review how we work internally  

 improve engagement on the wider community benefits/assets – open spaces, 
parking areas, playgrounds, community buildings etc. 

 
In response, the Portfolio Holder advised that, together with the Leader of the 
Council and the Managing Director, he would be meeting with the top five social 
housing providers in the Borough to talk through the relationship with the Council 
and the importance of establishing good working relationships to help provide an 
acceptable service for residents. He also suggested gathering data from the 
Ombudsman, via Freedom of Information requests, to be armed with evidence based 
data to challenge performance at an executive level. In response to the suggestion 
to review internal working methods, Cllr Dibble felt that things had changes 
significantly since the Group was first established and that this would be a good 
starting point for any changes. 
 
In summary, the Chair noted that the situation with RPs had changed significantly 
and suggested that the Group consider its Terms of Reference and question the best 

Page 2



- 3 - 
 

use of time to achieve strategic discussion with relevant RP partners. Consideration 
would also be given to the makeup of the Group and the option to widen the 
membership. 
 
ACTION 

What  Whom  When 

The Chairman to write to the Managing 
Director to express the disappointment of 
the Committee in relation to the lack of 
engagement from Registered Providers, 
in particular VIVID, on a strategic level 
with the RP Group. 

Cllr Halleh 
Koohestani 

24 June 
2025 

 
The Chairman thanked Cllr Dibble and Mrs Paine for their time and contributions to 
the meeting. 
 

4. APPOINTMENTS 2025/26 
 
RESOLVED: That the following Members be appointed to serve on the following 
Groups for the 2025/26 Municipal Year: 
 

(1) Overview and Scrutiny Progress Group  
 
Chairman  Cllr Halleh Koohestani 
Vice-Chairman Cllr Nadia Martin 
Vice-Chairman Cllr M.J. Tennant 
Labour Group  Cllr Thomas Day 

Cllr Bill O’Donovan 
Conservative Group  Cllr G.B. Lyon 
Liberal Democrat Cllr Leola Card 
 

(2) Council Tax Support Task and Finish Group  
 
Labour Group  Cllr C.P. Grattan 

Cllr Halleh Koohestani 
Cllr M.J. Roberts 

Conservative Group  Cllr P.J. Cullum  
Cllr S. Trussler 

 
(3) Farnborough Airport Task and Finish Group  

 
Chairman  Cllr Halleh Koohestani 
Labour Group  
* 

Cllr Abe Allen 
Cllr Bill O’Donovan  

Conservative Group  Cllr P.J. Cullum  
Cllr G.B. Lyon  

Liberal Democrat  Cllr C. Card 
 
*Cllr Jules Crossley (Portfolio Holder for Policy, Performance and Sustainability) 
would be invited to the meeting as and when appropriate 

Page 3



- 4 - 
 

 
It was noted that any meetings of the Farnborough Airport Task and Finish Group, 
which was tasked to look at the environmental and economic impacts of the airport, 
would be adjourned until the outstanding planning application had been determined. 
 

(4) Review of Registered Providers Task and Finish Group  
 
Chairman Cllr Halleh Koohestani 
Labour Group  Cllr Gaynor Austin 

Cllr Bill O’Donovan 
Conservative Group  Cllr S.J Masterson  

Cllr M.D. Smith 
 

5. WORK PLAN 
 
The Committee noted the current Work Plan and the proposed items for the July and 
September meetings. In July, Ms Paine would provide a report on the Housing and 
Homelessness Prevention Strategy and in September, the Police and Community 
Safety Team would be in attendance. 
 
The Committee considered the Council Delivery Plan 2025/26 and the Council Plan, 
Performance and Risk Register Quarterly Update and Year End 2024/25 Cabinet 
Report and identified a number of items for consideration, these included: 
 

 Leisure Centre 

 Finance 

 Communications Strategy  
o Community Engagement 
o Youth Engagement  
o How we consult? 
o Transparency of the Council – decision making and communications 

 Environmental Services  
o SERCO 
o Walk this Waste Pilot 

 Community Safety 

 Economic Development  
o Town Centre development (town square funding) 
o support for businesses 

 Local Government Reorganisation 

 Social Housing - allocation process 
 
At the meeting of the Progress Group on 17th June, a discussion would be held on 
how to take these items forward and the potential of focussing items to sit within the 
five priority areas identified in the Delivery Plan.  
 
In addition, it was agreed that, the Cabinet Champion reports could again be 
considered outside a meeting in the form of a written report from each Champion 
and that the voluntary sector organisations, Citizens’ Advice Rushmoor and 
Rushmoor Voluntary Services should not be required to attend during the 2025/26 
Municipal Year.  

Page 4



- 5 - 
 

 
The meeting closed at 8.30 pm. 
 
 
  

CLLR HALLEH KOOHESTANI (CHAIRMAN) 
 
 
 
 
 

------------ 

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



 
OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE  
 
31st July 2025 
                                  

Officer Update Report 
   

                                      REPORT NO PG2524  

 
 

 

HOUSING & HOMELESSNESS PREVENTION STRATEGY 
 MEMBER UPDATE 2025 

 
 
1. INTRODUCTION  
 

The strategy sets out the council’s approach to housing delivery, 
homelessness prevention and its role in maintaining good housing 
standards for residents.  
 
The strategy supports the delivery of the councils HOMES FOR ALL 
priority and provides housing partners with clarity on its approach.   
 
The purpose of this report is to inform Members of the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee on progress related to the implementation of the 
Housing & Homelessness Prevention Strategy published in October 2023 
and previously presented to the group in June 2024.   
 

 
2. BACKGROUND 

 
The Housing & Homelessness Prevention Strategy was published in 
October 2023. It is a statutory requirement to have a homelessness 
strategy in place and good practice to have a wider housing strategy to 
support the delivery of new homes. The strategy underpins the operational 
framework for officers and partner agencies responsible for delivering 
housing and housing related services to residents.    
 
The published strategy sets out the council’s strategic approach in three 
themes:  
 

Theme 1- Increasing the supply of good quality homes for 
residents, and prospective residents, for every stage of life. 

 
Theme 2- Support residents to access affordable, well managed 
and maintained housing in the private and social sectors. 

 

Page 7

AGENDA ITEM No. 2



Theme 3- Work proactively to improve the condition and energy 
efficiency of housing in the borough. 

 
 

The document provides an overview of the council’s position for each 
theme and sets out objectives and deliverable action points to form a 
Delivery Plan.  
 
In November 2024 the council published its Delivery Plan for 2025/26 
within which is the priority Homes for All: Quality Living, Affordable 
Housing - Rushmoor Borough Council. The existing Housing and 
Homelessness Prevention Strategy supports the delivery of the Homes for 
All Priority. The Delivery Plan progress monitoring is considered quarterly 
by Cabinet.  
 

       
3. 
 

 
PROGRESS TO DATE  

 The table below sets out the progress that has been made in the year  
for each of the strategies three themes.  

  
 

 
 

Objective 1 – Ensure up to date housing needs information to inform housing 
priorities in the Borough   
Actions:   

1) Utilise the council’s housing allocation pool data to monitor the need for social rented 
and temporary accommodation.   

2) Source quarterly market information via Rushmoor Homes Ltd on need and demand 
for private rented and home ownership in the borough   

3) Access information from Registered Providers (RPs), Homes England and 
Hampshire Enabler’s Network on need and demand for shared ownership and 
outright sale housing in the borough   

4) Engage with younger people (18–24-year-olds) on housing need and aspirations via 
colleges and other groups.   

Progress To date:  
The Homefinder website is updated quarterly showing the allocations for the year to date and 
a summary of those in the housing allocation pool. This information can be used to inform 
the demand of different house sizes in local plan making.  
 
Officers now source private market housing data directly from Office of National Statistics 
live tables rather than receiving report from external companies. 
 
The average private rent in the borough in June 2025 were:  
 

Page 8

https://www.rushmoor.gov.uk/your-council/council-delivery-plan-2025-26/homes-for-all-quality-living-affordable-housing/
https://www.rushmoor.gov.uk/your-council/council-delivery-plan-2025-26/homes-for-all-quality-living-affordable-housing/


Property Size Average Monthly Rent Monthly Local Housing 

Allowance 

1 bed £901 £800 

2 bed £1173 £1000 

3 bed £1411 £1295 

4 bed £2025 £1699 

 
HM Land Registry data shows that between April 2024 and April 2025 the average house 
price in Rushmoor increased by 1.7% to £319,000. This is lower than the general rise in the 
South East of 3.0%.  
 
Information on the demand for shared ownership homes has proved difficult to source. This 
is due to the Help to Buy scheme ending, whereby the Help to Buy agent collected and 
issued demand information across Hampshire. Individual shared ownership schemes are 
marketed by individual developers and registered providers this link shows and example of  
how Aster Group are advertising homes in Farnborough Buy New Build Homes by Aster 
 
Bridges are the estate agent for the shared ownership sales at Wellesley and confirm the 
continued demand for shared ownership homes. Of note is the challenge of meeting local 
housing demand as Bridges data show that sales to those with a local connection to the 
borough averages 60%-70%. Bridges Head of Land, Development & Shared Ownership has 
explained that this is mainly due to the large traches of shared ownership homes being 
released at one time and that local housing demand and need is for 2 bed properties; for 
context the current phase provides 16x 1 bed flats and 7x 2 bed flats; 8x 2 bed houses and 
8x 3 bed houses.  
 
Applicants:  Number (June 2025) 
Total Applicants for Wellesley  305 
Applicants with local connection  202 

 
There have been 611 enquiries for the last 4 houses to be advertised. Bridges data suggests 
there is local, immediate demand (Rushmoor residents who meet the affordability and 
mortgage ability criteria) for at least double the amount of shared ownership 2 & 3 bed 
homes currently being marketed.  
 
Objective 2 – Implement plans and policies which encourage the delivery of a diverse 
range of housing types and tenures, and which supports the local housing market.   
Actions:   

1) Through the existing Local Plan policies and Affordable Housing Supplementary 
Planning Document  

2) Through the emerging Local Plan policies    
Progress to date: 
Planning reforms, along with rent reform and improved levels of grant funding should assist 
in the delivery of more homes of all tenures going forward. Work preparing for the council’s 

Page 9

https://www.aster.co.uk/sales/property-search?price=asc&address=Farnborough%2C+UK&property_type=&bedrooms=&radius=&userfield2=no&qt=fA03cGe78CxbUzce&coords=51.2868939%2C-0.7526149999999999


new Local Plan has begun and subject to Government providing the necessary regulation 
and guidance will start to be progressed more formally later this year.   
 
The Affordable Housing Supplementary Planning document has had some minor 
amendments made to bring it up to date. The draft is currently being finalised and is 
scheduled for consultation in September 2025. This will ensure developers have appropriate 
and up to date guidance on the delivery of new affordable homes until the adoption of the 
new Local Plan. 
 
Objective 3 – Work collaboratively with developers in the private and social sectors 
and other partner agencies to maximise a sustainable housing supply and overcome 
challenges   
Actions:   

1) The Council’s housing enabling and planning functions will support developers to 
submit policy compliant applications through informal discussions and the pre 
application planning advice   

Progress to date:  
Delivery of affordable homes has been extremely challenging over the past few years with 
the council unable to meet its delivery target of 150 homes per year in 2023/24 and 2024/25. 
Officers are working to maximise every opportunity available to secure additional affordable 
housing supply, including supported housing, working with partners on capital funding bids, 
planning issues and legal work to secure long term nominations rights for Rushmoor 
residents.  
 
There are 357 affordable homes in the council’s current delivery programme of which 232 
are expected to be delivered within the current municipal year. Of these 22 are for social 
rent, 182 are for affordable rent and 28 for shared ownership.  
 
There are a further proposed 310 homes in the longer-term affordable housing delivery 
trajectory, including sites at Penmark and Progress House, Block 3 The Meads and Civic 
Quarter. 
 
Two stalled sites are being considered as potential affordable homes. In both cases the 
developer is in administration. 

   
Theme 2- Support residents to access affordable, well managed and 
maintained housing in the private and social sectors. 

 
Objective 1 – Continue to focus resources on preventing homelessness  
  
Actions:   

1) Homelessness Prevention Grant (HPG) to be prioritised to resource specialist, 
homelessness prevention roles.   

2) Working with statutory and voluntary partners to support people at risk of 
homelessness.  

3) Plan for the changes to the Rough Sleeping Initiative Grant which ends in 2025.   
Progress to date: 

Page 10



The council has recently recruited two specialist posts which support the prevention of 
homelessness:  

• Domestic Abuse Worker 
• Private Rent and Accommodation Officer 

 
Officers continue to explore other, innovative options with partners, and learn from other 
authorities on best practice. The council is achieving above the national average for 
homeless prevention at 77.9% of cases compared with a rate of 51.9% nationally.  
 
The service at Clayton Court has been maintained and secured until March 2028 with 
Society of St James taking over from Mears on 23/6/25. 
 
Officers are working with Two Saints to look at options to secure the 20 unit supported 
Housing provision at Grosvenor Road in Aldershot as Hampshire County Council Social 
Exclusion funding is withdrawn at the end of the current financial year.  
 
The Council is also working with Rolig Homes to deliver additional supported housing.  
Objective 2 – Re imagine the housing advice front line to increase accessibility by 
proactively communicating information and advice to residents to prevent them 
getting into crisis situations   
Actions:  

1) Prepare a social media communications plan for specific groups at risk of 
homelessness, for example young people.   

2) Further develop and promote the council’s digital systems to increase the 
council’s self-service provision, whilst continuing to support more vulnerable 
residents to access support services in more traditional ways  

Progress to date:                                                                                                          
The council’s communications team have scheduled in a programme of work. Including 
working with the third sector and faith groups to harness their expertise.  

The Housing Options team have recently provided Member training on how affordable 
housing is allocated to support Members with casework. 

The Abritas portal has been upgraded which provides residents with a better online 
service. Improvements include:  

• Direct messaging with housing officers, making it easier to get updates and 
assistance 

• Document uploading, making it easier for residents to submit forms online 
securely  

• Self-service password resets, reducing barriers to access 
• Mobile friendly design, allowing interaction from any device anywhere. 

Going forward officers will explore how AI can help officers deliver a better service for 
residents however, the service remains committed to supporting residents with their 
preferred method of engagement, encouraging them to switch only if they are able to. 
Objective 3 – Work collaboratively with partners in the private and social sector to 
ensure homes are accessible and well managed.   

Page 11



Actions:   
1) Ensuring households are aware of and able to access adaptations to support 

them to remain in their own home through the day-to-day work of the Private 
Sector Housing Team   

2) Continue to run the Registered Provider Review Process of RP scrutiny   
Progress to date:  
Referrals and access to the DFG process start with Hampshire County Council who 
currently have a significant backlog of cases due to making changes to the way residents 
are assessed. Promotion of this scheme has been paused.  
 
The RP Review programme was carried out and a report presented to Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee on 12th June 2025. The format and purpose of the RP Review Group 
is under review.  
 
Theme 3- Work proactively to improve the condition and energy efficiency of 
housing in the borough. 
  
Objective 1 – Focus staff resource on enforcing standard and housing conditions in 
the knowledge that good housing conditions usually means good thermal efficiency  
Actions:   

1) Continue the regulatory and enforcement work of the Private Sector Housing Team   
2) Scrutinise our RP partners through the work of the Annual Registered Providers 

Review Group    
Progress to date:  
Regulatory & enforcement work continues and the RPs attending the Review meetings are 
appropriately challenged by members where the level of service to residents is 
unsatisfactory 
.  
Staffing resource will need to be reviewed considering The Supported Housing (Regulatory 
Oversight) Act 2023 and the statutory requirement coming into force in June 2026 to for 
licensing Supported Housing in the borough.  
Members continue to work with officers on overcoming problematic complaints.  
Objective 2 – Communicate effectively, including via digital platforms to residents 
and landlords about the support, advice, and funding available to them to install 
energy efficiency measures in the existing, older stock  
Actions:   

1) Seek to ensure funding is focussed on the properties and households most in need.  
2) Implement an annual communications plan so that landlords and residents are 

aware of their rights and responsibilities, how to get help accessing grants and 
loans available to assist them to improve housing conditions.   

3) Ensure website information is up to date and linking to appropriate energy efficiency 
information and schemes  

Progress to date:  
Rushmoor is part of the Portsmouth Consortium which as been awarded funding for energy 
performance and low carbon heating upgrades to low-income households.  
 
The council is part of the Warmer Homes Consortium, led by Portsmouth City Council to 
deliver energy efficiency measures in private domestic properties, this is published on the 

Page 12



council’s website. The consortium has targeted off gas properties with an Energy 
Performance Certificate rating of D or below. Data for Rushmoor shows increased take up 
and spend in the last 2 financial years.  
 
 
 2023/24 2024/25 Combined 
Applications received 18 22 40 
Properties partially 
completed 

0 0 0 

Properties completed 1 6 7 
Active Measures 7 7 14 
Measured completed  1 7 8 
Funding Spent  £7,275.00 £45,888.20 £53,163.20 

   
The council awaits further information for the next phase referred to as Warmer Homes: 
Local Grant, a government-funded scheme delivered by Local Authorities. It will provide 
grants for energy performance upgrades and low carbon heating to low-income households 
to achieve energy bill savings and carbon savings. These upgrades will be open to all fuel 
types, including on gas households and off gas households (the previous scheme targeted 
off gas properties only). In the meantime, residents can register their interest on the warmer 
homes website and information for this service is available on the councils website Energy 
efficiency in homes - Rushmoor Borough Council. 
Objective 3 – Work with partner organisations to improve energy efficiency, reduce 
fuel poverty and seek innovative to achieve retrofitting (for example working with 
businesses to carbon offsetting through carbon credits to RPs for retrofitting) to 
improve residents health and wellbeing and reduce carbon emissions. 
    
Actions:   

1) Ensuring that the communications plan promotes the services and funding 
packages available to partner organisations.   

2) Explore the development of the Carbon Offsetting Scheme currently being piloted 
by RP partners and HACT   

Progress to date: 
The Communications team promoted the Home Upgrade Grant (phase2) have scheduled 
work into their Service Plan.  
 
Officers will pick up with HACT on conclusion of the pilot scheme to explore the benefits of 
carbon off setting for RP partners in 2026/27, this is likely to be with other Local Authority’s 
in the context of Local Government Reorganisation.  
  
4. SUPPORTED HOUSING ACT- New Statutory Duties  
 
The Supported Housing Act 2023 places new statutory obligations on local 
authorities to review supported accommodation in their borough, publish a 
Supported Housing Strategy and set up a Supported Housing Licencing scheme 
by June 2026. It is a requirement that the Supported Housing Strategy will inform 
the Local Plan and Housing and Homelessness Strategies thereafter. MHCLG 
requires a joint approach with involvement from adult services, neighbouring 
service providers and neighbouring authorities. 
 

Page 13

https://www.rushmoor.gov.uk/housing-benefits-and-support/help-to-adapt-or-improve-your-home/energy-efficiency-in-homes/
https://www.rushmoor.gov.uk/housing-benefits-and-support/help-to-adapt-or-improve-your-home/energy-efficiency-in-homes/


New burdens funding will be available in 2026/27 to cover set up costs, thereafter 
Licence Fees are expected to cover future costs of the service. Further guidance 
is awaited from MCHLG, in the meantime officers are starting to work through the 
most appropriate way to deliver this work within the timescales and context of 
Local Government Review.  
 
5. CONCLUSION 
 
The council’s strategic approach to housing and homelessness prevention is 
being delivered well across the three housing service areas. The delivery of the 
strategic objectives supports the Homes For All council priority and demonstrates 
updates on how the council is meeting its statutory housing duties.  
 
6. RECOMMENDATION 
 
Members of the Overview & Scrutiny Committee are asked to note the progress 
that has been achieved in the year.   
 
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS: 
 
Housing & Homelessness Prevention Strategy Rushmoor Housing and 
Homelessness Prevention Strategy 2023 - 2027 
 
CONTACT DETAILS: 
 
Report Author –Zoё Paine Housing Strategy & Enabling Manager 
zoe.paine@rushmoor.gov.uk 
 
Head of Service – Tim Mills: Executive Head of Property and Growth  
tim.mills@rushmoor.gov.uk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 14

https://www.rushmoor.gov.uk/media/odii5a3h/housing-and-homelessness-strategy-2023-accessible.pdf
https://www.rushmoor.gov.uk/media/odii5a3h/housing-and-homelessness-strategy-2023-accessible.pdf
mailto:zoe.paine@rushmoor.gov.uk
mailto:tim.mills@rushmoor.gov.uk


Last Updated 18/06/2025 
1 

 

   
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE WORK PLAN 

 
 
The purpose of the work plan is to plan, manage and co-ordinate the ongoing activity and progress of the Council’s Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee. It will be updated regularly and presented to each meeting of the Committee. It will include issues that are 
currently being actioned as well as those that will be subject to future work.   
 
The Committees Terms of Reference are as follows: 
  

• to perform all overview and scrutiny functions on behalf of the Council; 
 

• to appoint such formal sub-committees and informal task and finish groups as it considers necessary to assist it in 
discharging its functions; 
   

• to prepare and approve the overview and scrutiny work programme so as to ensure that the Committee’s time is 
effectively and efficiently utilised; 

 
• to undertake investigations into such matters relating to the Council’s functions and powers as: 
 

(1) may be referred by the Council, Committees, the Cabinet, or the Leader; or 
(2) the Committee may consider appropriate; or 
(3) have been referred to the Committee pursuant to the “call-in” procedure set out in the Overview and 

Scrutiny Procedure Rules in Part 4 of this Constitution. (These can be decisions taken by the Cabinet, a 
Cabinet Member, key decisions taken by an officer or under joint arrangements). 
 

• to monitor and review the performance of the Council and services against relevant performance indicators and adopted 
plans;  
  

P
age 15

A
G

E
N

D
A

 IT
E

M
 N

o. 3



Last Updated 18/06/2025 
2 

 

• to review and/or scrutinise decisions proposed to be made (pre-decision scrutiny) or actions taken in connection with 
the discharge of any of the Council’s functions; 
 

• to review existing policy and strategy with a view to securing continuous improvement in the way in which the Council’s 
functions are exercised, having regard to a combination of economy, efficiency and effectiveness;   

 
• to make reports and/or recommendations to the full Council and/or the Cabinet in connection with the discharge of any 

functions; 
 
• to review and/or scrutinise any matter affecting the area or its inhabitants;  
 
• to discuss initiatives put forward for consideration by individual members of the Committee and any relevant ‘call-for-

action’ in accordance with the Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules set out in Part 4 of this Constitution; and  
 
• to consider petitions referred to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee in accordance with provisions set out in the 

Petition Scheme set out in Part 4 of this Constitution.    
  

P
age 16



Last Updated 18/06/2025 
3 

 

(A) ISSUES CURRENTLY BEING PROGRESSED BY THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE TASK AND FINISH 
GROUPS 
 
 
ISSUE (PURPOSE OF 
REVIEW) 

 
TASK AND FINISH GROUP  
(MEMBERSHIP 2025/26) 

 
CURRENT WORK 

 
To monitor the 
performance and activities 
of Registered Providers 
working in the Borough. 
 

 
Cllrs Gaynor Austin, Halleh 
Koohestani (Chairman), S.J 
Masterson, Bill O’Donovan 
and M.D. Smith. 
 
Cllrs Abe Allen, G.B. Lyon 
and Becky Williams will act 
as Standing Deputies. 
 

 

 
To review the Council Tax 
Support Scheme 
 

 
Cllrs P.J. Cullum, C.P. 
Grattan, Halleh Koohestani 
(Chairman), M.J Roberts 
and S. Trussler. 
 

 

 
To consider further the 
economical and 
environmental impacts of 
Farnborough Airport on 
the Borough. 

 
Cllrs Abe Allen, C. Card, 
P.J. Cullum, Halleh 
Koohestani (Chairman) 
G.B. Lyon and Bill 
O’Donovan. 
 
The Portfolio Holder for 
Policy, Performance and 
Sustainability will be invited 
to the meeting as and when 
appropriate. 

 
NOTE - meetings of the Farnborough Airport Task and Finish Group, which is 
tasked to look at the environmental and economic impacts of the airport, will 
be adjourned until the outstanding planning application has been determined. 
 

P
age 17



Last Updated 18/06/2025 
4 

 

(B) ISSUES CURRENTLY BEING PROGRESSED BY THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE IN LINE WITH THE COUNCIL 
DELIVERY PLAN 2025/26 

SKILLS ECONOMY AND BUSINESS 
 

ISSUE CURRENT WORK 
  
  

HOMES FOR ALL: QUALITY LIVING, AFFORDABLE HOUSING 
 

ISSUE  CURRENT WORK 
  
  

COMMUNITY AND WELLBEING: ACTIVE LIVES, HEALTHIER AND STRONGER COMMUNITIES 
 

ISSUE  CURRENT WORK  
  
  

PRIDE IN PLACE: CLEAN, SAFE AND VIBRANT NEIGHBOURHOODS 
 

ISSUE  CURRENT WORK 
  
  

THE FUTURE AND FINANCIAL SUSTAINABILITY 
 

ISSUE CURRENT WORK  
  
  

P
age 18



Last Updated 18/06/2025 
5 

 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

WORKFLOW – June 2025- March 2026 

DATE  ITEMS 
   
12 June 2025 
 

 Appointments  
Registered Providers Annual Report – 2024/25 – ZP 
 

31 July 2025 
 

 Housing and Homelessness Prevention Strategy – ZP 

18 September 2025 
 

 Police and Community Safety – JK/DL/GC 

23 October 2025 
 

 SERCO  
Walk this Waste Pilot 
 

11 December 2025 
 

 Leisure Centre pre decision scrutiny 

29 January 2026 
 

 Finance 
 

Feb (Date TBC)?  Community Engagement  
 

26 March 2026 
 

 Regen & Civic Quarter 

 
Potential Future Items for 
the Committee in 2025/26 
 

 1. Highways issues (condition of roads, speeding and road safety 
issues) – HCC – letter being drafted  

2. Business Support & Economic Development 
3. Local Government Reorganisation 

 

Page 19



Last Updated 18/06/2025 
6 

 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

Progress Meetings 2025/26 

Membership: Cllr Halleh Koohestani (Chairman), Cllr Nadia Martin (Vice-Chairman) and Cllrs Leola Card, Thomas Day, Gareth 
Lyon, Bill O’Donovan and Cllr Martin Tennant. 

Click here to view the latest Action Tracker  
(Please refresh the page when opening to ensure the latest version is available) 

 
 
DATE 
 

 ITEM 
 
NOTES 

    
17.06.2025 
 

 Registered Providers T&F 
Annual Report (12 June) 
 
 
 
Housing and 
Homelessness Prevention 
Strategy  
 
 
Work Plan  
 

ACTION – the T&F Group alongside the Portfolio Holder to review the Terms of Reference 
(ToR) of the Group.  
Consider how RPs can be rated on their operational standards through the use of score 
cards. 
 
Consideration be given to changing the date of the July Committee meeting to allow Cllr 
Dibble to attend. AT to look at date options and report back. Alternatives include, asking KD 
to join online or providing a summary of questions to be answered offline if go ahead with 
original date. 
 
See schedule above  

13.08.2025 
 

 Community Safety and 
Policing  
 

Scope item for meeting on 18 Sept (JK/DL invited) 

29.09.2025 
 

   

03.11.2025 
 

   

P
age 20

https://rushmoorcouncil.sharepoint.com/:x:/r/sites/democraticsupport/Shared%20Documents/Overview%20%26%20Scrutiny%20Committee/Action%20Tracker/OSC%20Action%20Tracker%20.xlsx?d=w43fd005021ba4604b3b9e4736ba1e71d&csf=1&web=1&e=q2aapq


Last Updated 18/06/2025 
7 

 

17.12.2025 
 

   

05.02.2026 
 

   

02.04.2026 
Wash Up  
 

   

Other Items    
 

 

 

P
age 21



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	2 Housing and Homelessness Prevention Strategy  2023-27
	HOUSING & HOMELESSNESS PREVENTION STRATEGY
	MEMBER UPDATE 2025
	1. INTRODUCTION

	3 Work Plan

